



State of Wisconsin
2005 - 2006 LEGISLATURE

LRB-0529/P5

RPN:/.....
WLJ

PRELIMINARY DRAFT - NOT READY FOR INTRODUCTION

DEC. 17
FRIDAY

GEN

1 AN ACT ...; relating to: the powers and duties of the department of veterans
 2 affairs, veterans assistance, educational programs, burials, cemeteries, homes,
 3 housing loans, memorials, and museums, the employment rights and benefits
 4 available to persons who are in or return from military service, the educational
 5 approval board, and making appropriations. ^{who} ^{and providing penalties}
 granting rule-making authority requiring the exercise of rule-making authority.

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Bureau

***NOTE: THIS DRAFT HAS NOT BEEN EDITED

This bill is explained in the NOTES provided by the Joint Legislative Council in the bill.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

6 SECTION 1. 15.497 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:
 7 15.497 (2) (c) One representative of the Wisconsin county veterans' veterans
 8 service officers.

1 **SECTION 2.** 16.75 (4) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 16.75 (4) (d) In this subsection and s. 16.755, "veteran-owned business" means
3 a small business, as defined in par. (c), that is certified by the department of veterans
4 affairs as being at least 51% owned by one or more veterans, as defined in s. ~~45.35~~
5 ~~(5) 45.01 (12)~~.

History: 1975 c. 224; 1977 c. 418, 419; 1979 c. 34, 221, 314, 340, 355; 1979 c. 361 s. 112; 1981 c. 121 s. 20; 1983 a. 27 ss. 91, 93 to 99; 1983 a. 333 ss. 3g, 3r to 4b, 6; 1983 a. 368, 390; 1985 a. 29 ss. 122m to 124, 3200 (1); 1985 a. 180; 1987 a. 27, 119, 142, 147, 186, 399, 403; 1989 a. 31, 335, 345, 359; 1991 a. 39, 170; 1993 a. 16, 414; 1995 a. 27 ss. 368 to 382, 9116 (5); 1995 a. 225, 227, 244, 289, 432; 1997 a. 3; 1999 a. 9, 44, 197; 2001 a. 16, 38; 2003 a. 33.

6 **SECTION 3.** 16.96 (2) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 16.96 (2) (f) Persons who are members in the Wisconsin Veterans Home at King
8 shall be considered residents of the town of Farmington and of Waupaca County,
9 persons who are members in the Wisconsin Veterans Home at Chippewa Falls shall
10 be considered residents of the city of Chippewa Falls and of Chippewa County, and
11 persons who are members in the Wisconsin ~~veterans facility in southeastern~~
12 Wisconsin Veterans Home at Union Grove shall be considered residents of the town
13 of Dover and of Racine County for purposes of the state revenue sharing distribution
14 under subch. I of ch. 79.

History: 1971 c. 215; 1973 c. 37, 333; 1975 c. 189; 1977 c. 29 ss. 93 to 95, 1648 (1), (3); 1979 c. 34; 1981 c. 20; 1983 a. 29; 1987 a. 142; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 269; 1999 a. 63.

15 **SECTION 4.** 18.04 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 18.04 (2) The commission shall authorize public debt to be contracted and
17 evidences of indebtedness to be issued ~~therefor~~ for the debt up to the amounts
18 specified by the legislature to acquire, construct, develop, extend, enlarge or improve
19 land, waters, property, highways, buildings, equipment or facilities or to make funds
20 available for ~~veterans'~~ veterans housing loans for the classes of public purposes
21 specified by the legislature as the funds are required. ~~Said~~ The requirements for

1 funds shall be established by that department or agency head having program
2 responsibilities for which public debt has been authorized by the legislature.

3 **History:** 1973 c. 90 s. 555m (2); 1975 c. 26; 1977 c. 29 s. 1652; 1977 c. 317; 1985 a. 6; 1987 a. 27; 1989 a. 31, 46.

3 **SECTION 5.** 18.04 (5) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 18.04 (5) (a) To acquire public debt contracted to make funds available for
5 ~~veterans'~~ veterans housing loans under sub. (2).

6 **History:** 1973 c. 90 s. 555m (2); 1975 c. 26; 1977 c. 29 s. 1652; 1977 c. 317; 1985 a. 6; 1987 a. 27; 1989 a. 31, 46.

6 **SECTION 6.** 18.04 (5) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 18.04 (5) (b) To fund or refund public debt contracted to make funds available
8 for ~~veterans'~~ veterans housing loans under sub. (2).

9 **History:** 1973 c. 90 s. 555m (2); 1975 c. 26; 1977 c. 29 s. 1652; 1977 c. 317; 1985 a. 6; 1987 a. 27; 1989 a. 31, 46.

9 **SECTION 7.** 18.04 (5) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 18.04 (5) (c) To acquire public debt, other than public debt that is contracted
11 to make funds available for ~~veterans'~~ veterans housing loans under sub. (2), for the
12 purpose of investment for the veterans primary mortgage loan program under s.
13 ~~45.79~~ 45.37.

14 **History:** 1973 c. 90 s. 555m (2); 1975 c. 26; 1977 c. 29 s. 1652; 1977 c. 317; 1985 a. 6; 1987 a. 27; 1989 a. 31, 46.

14 **SECTION 8.** 18.04 (6) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 18.04 (6) (b) The commission may direct that moneys resulting from any public
16 debt contracted under this section be deposited in the funds or accounts created or
17 designated by resolution of the commission or established by resolution under s.
18 ~~45.79 (7)~~ 45.37 (7), including escrow accounts established under refunding escrow
19 agreements that are authorized by the commission.

20 **History:** 1973 c. 90 s. 555m (2); 1975 c. 26; 1977 c. 29 s. 1652; 1977 c. 317; 1985 a. 6; 1987 a. 27; 1989 a. 31, 46.

20 **SECTION 9.** 18.04 (6) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 18.04 (6) (c) Notwithstanding s. 25.17, moneys deposited or held in funds or
22 accounts under par. (b) and all other moneys received under s. ~~45.79 (7) (a) (intro.)~~

1 45.37 (7) (a) (intro.) may be invested in any obligations, either through cash purchase
2 or exchange, as specified by resolution of the commission.

3 **History:** 1973 c. 90 s. 555m (2); 1975 c. 26; 1977 c. 29 s. 1652; 1977 c. 317; 1985 a. 6; 1987 a. 27; 1989 a. 31, 46.

3 **SECTION 10.** 18.06 (7) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 18.06 (7) (intro.). Notwithstanding subs. (2) to (5), the following procedures
5 apply to public debt contracted for any of the purposes under s. 18.04 (5) or contracted
6 for the purpose of making funds available for ~~veterans'~~ veterans housing loans:

7 **History:** 1977 c. 317; 1979 c. 107; 1981 c. 336; 1983 a. 368; 1985 a. 6; 1987 a. 27; 1989 a. 31, 46, 68, 366; 1991 a. 39, 221; 1993 a. 16; 1995 a. 27; 1997 a. 27.

7 **SECTION 11.** 20.435 (4) (vt) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 20.435 (4) (vt) *Veterans trust fund; nurse stipends.* From the veterans trust
9 fund, the amounts in the schedule for the state share of the medical assistance costs
10 related to the provision of stipends under s. ~~45.365 (7)~~ 45.50 (9).

History: 1971 c. 125 ss. 138 to 155, 522 (1); 1971 c. 211, 215, 302, 307, 322; 1973 c. 90, 198, 243; 1973 c. 284 s. 32; 1973 c. 308, 321, 322, 333, 336; 1975 c. 39 ss. 153 to 173, 732 (1), (2); 1975 c. 41 s. 52; 1975 c. 82, 224, 292; 1975 c. 413 s. 18; 1975 c. 422, 423; 1975 c. 430 ss. 1, 2, 80; 1977 c. 29 ss. 236 to 273, 1657 (18); 1977 c. 112; 1977 c. 203 s. 106; 1977 c. 213, 233, 327; 1977 c. 354 s. 101; 1977 c. 359; 1977 c. 418 ss. 129 to 137, 924 (18) (d), 929 (55); 1977 c. 428 s. 115; 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 32 s. 92 (11); 1979 c. 34, 48; 1979 c. 102 s. 237; 1979 c. 111, 175, 177; 1979 c. 221 ss. 118g to 133, 2202 (20); 1979 c. 238, 300, 331, 361; 1981 c. 20 ss. 301 to 356b, 2202 (20) (b), (d), (g); 1981 c. 93 ss. 3 to 8, 186; 1981 c. 298, 314, 317, 359, 390; 1983 a. 27 ss. 318 to 410, 2202 (20); 1983 a. 192, 199, 245; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1983 a. 363, 398, 410, 427; 1983 a. 435 ss. 2, 3, 7; 1983 a. 538; 1985 a. 24, 29, 56, 73, 120, 154, 176, 255, 281, 285, 332; 1987 a. 27, 339, 368, 398, 399, 402; 1987 a. 403 ss. 25, 256; 1987 a. 413; 1989 a. 31, 53; 1989 a. 56 ss. 13, 259; 1989 a. 102; 1989 a. 107 ss. 11, 13, 17 to 37; 1989 a. 120, 122, 173, 199, 202, 318, 336, 359; 1991 a. 6, 39, 189, 269, 275, 290, 315, 322; 1993 a. 16, 27, 76, 98, 99, 168, 183, 377, 437, 445, 446, 450, 469, 479, 490, 491; 1995 a. 27 ss. 806 to 961r, 9126 (19); 1995 a. 77, 98; 1995 a. 216 ss. 26, 27; 1995 a. 266, 276, 289, 303, 404, 417, 440, 448, 464, 468; 1997 a. 27 ss. 211, 214, 216, 217, 527 to 609; 1997 a. 35, 105, 231, 237, 280, 293; 1999 a. 5, 9, 32, 52, 84, 103, 109, 113, 133, 185, 186; 2001 a. 16, 69, 103, 105; 2003 a. 33, 139, 186, 318, 320, 326, 327.

11 **SECTION 12.** 20.485 (1) (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 20.485 (1) (title) ~~HOMES AND FACILITIES FOR VETERANS~~ VETERANS HOMES.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

13 **SECTION 13.** 20.485 (1) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 20.485 (1) (d) *Cemetery maintenance and beautification.* The amounts in the
15 schedule for cemetery maintenance and beautification at the Central Wisconsin
16 Veterans Memorial Cemetery at the Wisconsin Veterans Home at King.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

17 **SECTION 14.** 20.485 (1) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 20.485 (1) (e) *Lease rental payments.* A sum sufficient to pay the rentals
2 required to be made on facilities under leases entered into under s. ~~45.38~~ 45.03 (5).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

3 **SECTION 15.** 20.485 (1) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 20.485 (1) (g) *Home exchange.* The amounts in the schedule for the purchase
5 of the necessary materials, supplies and equipment for the operation of the home
6 exchange, and compensation for members' labor. All moneys received from the sale
7 of products authorized by s. ~~45.37 (9)~~ 45.51 (7) shall be credited to this appropriation.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

8 **SECTION 16.** 20.485 (1) (gd) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 20.485 (1) (gd) *Veterans home cemetery operations.* All moneys received from
10 the estate of the decedents under s. ~~45.37 (15) (e)~~ 45.61 ⁵ (6) for the burial of veterans
11 and non-veterans in the a Wisconsin Veterans Memorial Cemetery at the Wisconsin
12 Veterans Home at King veterans cemetery under 45.61 ¹ (2), to be used for that
13 purpose.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

14 **SECTION 17.** 20.485 (1) (gk) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 20.485 (1) (gk) *Institutional operations.* The amounts in the schedule for the
16 care of the Wisconsin Veterans Home at King, the Southern Wisconsin Veterans
17 Retirement Center, and veterans facilities veterans homes under s. 45.50, and for the
18 payment of stipends under s. ~~45.365 (7)~~ 45.50 (9). All moneys received under par. (m)
19 and s. ~~45.37 (9) (d) and (9d)~~ 45.50 (7) (b) and (8) shall be credited to this
20 appropriation.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

X-ref. to

S. 45.50 (7) (b) + (8)

Wrong @

5-19.

1 20.485 (1) (e) *Lease rental payments.* A sum sufficient to pay the rentals
2 required to be made on facilities under leases entered into under s. ~~45.38~~ 45.03 (5).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

3 **SECTION 15.** 20.485 (1) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 20.485 (1) (g) *Home exchange.* The amounts in the schedule for the purchase
5 of the necessary materials, supplies and equipment for the operation of the home
6 exchange, and compensation for members' labor. All moneys received from the sale
7 of products authorized by s. ~~45.37 (9)~~ 45.51 (7) shall be credited to this appropriation.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

8 **SECTION 16.** 20.485 (1) (gd) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 20.485 (1) (gd) *Veterans home cemetery operations.* All moneys received from
10 the estate of the decedents under s. ~~45.37 (15) (e)~~ 45.61 (6) for the burial of veterans
11 and non-veterans in the ~~a Wisconsin Veterans Memorial Cemetery at the Wisconsin~~
12 ~~Veterans Home at King~~ veterans cemetery under 45.61 (2), to be used for that
13 purpose.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

14 **SECTION 17.** 20.485 (1) (gk) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 20.485 (1) (gk) *Institutional operations.* The amounts in the schedule for the
16 care of the Wisconsin ~~Veterans Home at King, the Southern Wisconsin Veterans~~
17 ~~Retirement Center, and veterans facilities~~ veterans homes under s. 45.50, and for the
18 payment of stipends under s. ~~45.365 (7)~~ 45.50 (9). All moneys received under par. (m)
19 and s. ~~45.37 (9) (d) and (9d)~~ ⁵¹~~45.50~~ (7) (b) and (8) shall be credited to this
20 appropriation.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

1 SECTION 18. 20.485 (1) (go) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 20.485 (1) (go) *Self-amortizing housing facilities; principal repayment and*
 3 *interest.* From the moneys received for providing housing services at the Wisconsin
 4 ~~Veterans Home at King and the Wisconsin veterans facility in southeastern~~
 5 ~~Wisconsin veterans homes under s. 45.50~~, a sum sufficient to reimburse s. 20.866 (1)
 6 (u) for the principal and interest costs incurred in acquiring, constructing,
 7 developing, enlarging or improving housing facilities at the Wisconsin Veterans
 8 ~~Home at King and the Wisconsin veterans facility in southeastern Wisconsin~~
 9 ~~veterans homes under s. 45.50~~ and to make the payments determined by the building
 10 commission under s. 13.488 (1) (m) that are attributable to the proceeds of
 11 obligations incurred in financing ~~such~~ the facilities.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

12 SECTION 19. 20.485 (1) (h) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 20.485 (1) (h) *Gifts and bequests.* All moneys received under s. ~~45.37 (10) and~~
 14 ~~(11) 45.51 (10) and (11)~~, or any moneys received by gifts or bequests, to carry out the
 15 purposes of ss. ~~45.365, 45.37 and 45.385~~ 45.50 and 45.51.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

16 SECTION 20. 20.485 (1) (hm) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 20.485 (1) (hm) *Gifts and grants.* All moneys received from gifts and grants
 18 specifically for the purpose of s. ~~45.365 (1) (d)~~ 45.50 (1) (c), to carry out the purpose
 19 of s. ~~45.365 (1) (d)~~ 45.50 (1) (c).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

20 SECTION 21. 20.485 (1) (i) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 **SECTION 18.** 20.485 (1) (go) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 20.485 (1) (go) *Self-amortizing housing facilities; principal repayment and*
 3 *interest.* From the moneys received for providing housing services at ~~the~~ Wisconsin
 4 ~~Veterans Home at King and the Wisconsin veterans facility in southeastern~~
 5 ~~Wisconsin veterans homes under s. 45.50~~, a sum sufficient to reimburse s. 20.866 (1)
 6 (u) for the principal and interest costs incurred in acquiring, constructing,
 7 developing, enlarging or improving housing facilities at ~~the~~ Wisconsin Veterans
 8 ~~Home at King and the Wisconsin veterans facility in southeastern Wisconsin~~
 9 ~~veterans homes under s. 45.50~~ and to make the payments determined by the building
 10 commission under s. 13.488 (1) (m) that are attributable to the proceeds of
 11 obligations incurred in financing ~~such~~ the facilities.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

12 **SECTION 19.** 20.485 (1) (h) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 20.485 (1) (h) *Gifts and bequests.* All moneys received under s. ~~45.37 (10) and~~
 14 ~~(11)~~ 45.51 (10) and (11), or any moneys received by gifts or bequests, to carry out the
 15 purposes of ss. ~~45.365, 45.37 and 45.385~~ 45.50 and 45.51.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

16 **SECTION 20.** 20.485 (1) (hm) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 20.485 (1) (hm) *Gifts and grants.* All moneys received from gifts and grants
 18 specifically for the purpose of s. ~~45.365 (1) (d)~~ 45.50 (1) (c), to carry out the purpose
 19 of s. ~~45.365 (1) (d)~~ 45.50 (1) (c).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

20 **SECTION 21.** 20.485 (1) (i) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 20.485 (1) (i) *State-owned housing maintenance.* The amounts in the schedule
 2 for maintenance of state-owned housing at the Wisconsin Veterans Home at King
 3 and the veterans facility in southeastern Wisconsin veterans homes under s. 45.50.
 4 All moneys received by the department from rentals of state-owned housing shall
 5 be credited to this appropriation account.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

6 **SECTION 22.** 20.485 (1) (j) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 20.485 (1) (j) *Geriatric program receipts.* All moneys received from program
 8 operations by the geriatric evaluation, research, and education program, to carry out
 9 the purpose of s. ~~45.365 (1) (d)~~ 45.50 (1) (c).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

10 **SECTION 23.** 20.485 (1) (m) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 20.485 (1) (m) *Federal aid; care at veterans home and facilities homes.* All
 12 moneys received from the federal government for care of veterans of any war or
 13 military expedition of the United States who have been admitted to and cared for at
 14 ~~the Wisconsin Veterans Home at King and veterans facilities~~ Wisconsin veterans
 15 homes under s. 45.50. The net revenues accruing under this paragraph shall be
 16 credited to the appropriation under par. (gk).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

17 **SECTION 24.** 20.485 (1) (mj) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 20.485 (1) (mj) *Federal aid; geriatric unit.* All moneys received from the federal
 19 government for the geriatric program at ~~the Wisconsin Veterans Home at King and~~

1 ~~veterans facilities~~ veterans homes, to carry out the purpose of s. ~~45.365 (1) (d)~~ 45.50

2 (1) (c).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

3 **SECTION 25.** 20.485 (1) (t) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 20.485 (1) (t) *Veterans homes* ~~and facilities~~ *member accounts*. From the
5 Wisconsin ~~Veterans Home at King and veterans facilities~~ homes members fund, all
6 moneys received under s. 25.37 to make payments as provided under s. ~~45.37 (9e)~~,
7 ~~(10) and (11)~~ 45.51 (8), (10), and (11).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

8 **SECTION 26.** 20.485 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 20.485 (2) (c) *Operation of Wisconsin veterans museum*. From the general fund,
10 the amounts in the schedule for the operation of the Wisconsin veterans museum
11 under s. ~~45.014~~ 45.07.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

12 **SECTION 27.** 20.485 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 (13) 20.485 (2) (d) *Veterans memorials at ^{the}Highground*. From the general fund,
14 as a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the schedule to construct ~~memorials~~
15 for World War I, World War II and a memorial for Persian Gulf war veterans at ~~The~~ ^{the}
16 Highground.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

17 **SECTION 28.** 20.485 (2) (e) of the statutes is repealed.

18 **SECTION 29.** 20.485 (2) (em) of the statutes is repealed.

19 **SECTION 30.** 20.485 (2) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 20.485 (2) (g) *Consumer reporting agency fees.* From the general fund, all
2 moneys received from consumer reporting agencies under s. ~~45.36 (5m)~~ 45.04 (7) for
3 the purpose of providing information to those agencies under s. ~~45.36 (5m)~~ 45.04 (7).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

4 **SECTION 31.** 20.485 (2) (kt) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 20.485 (2) (kt) *Operation of Wisconsin veterans museum; Indian gaming*
6 *receipts.* The amounts in the schedule for the operation of the Wisconsin veterans
7 museum under s. ~~45.014~~ 45.07. All moneys transferred from the appropriation
8 account under s. 20.505 (8) (hm) 13v. shall be credited to this appropriation account.
9 Notwithstanding s. 20.001 (3) (a), the unencumbered balance on June 30 of each year
10 shall revert to the appropriation account under s. 20.505 (8) (hm).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

11 **SECTION 32.** 20.485 (2) (q) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 20.485 (2) (q) *Military honors funerals funeral honors.* Biennially, the amounts
13 in the schedule to provide military ~~honors funerals~~ funeral honors for veterans under
14 s. ~~45.19 (1)~~ 45.60.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

15 **SECTION 33.** 20.485 (2) (rm) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 20.485 (2) (rm) *Veterans assistance program.* Biennially, the amounts in the
17 schedule for general program operations of the veterans assistance program under
18 s. ~~45.357~~ 45.43.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

19 **SECTION 34.** 20.485 (2) (rp) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 20.485 (2) (rp) *Veterans assistance program receipts*. The amounts in the
 2 schedule for the provision of assistance to veterans under s. ~~45.357 (1)~~ 45.43 (1). All
 3 moneys received from fees under s. ~~45.357 (2)~~ 45.43 (2) shall be credited to this
 4 appropriation account.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

5 **SECTION 35.** 20.485 (2) (s) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 20.485 (2) (s) *Transportation grant payment*. The amounts in the schedule to
 7 provide transportation services grants payments under ss. ~~45.353 (3m)~~ 45.41 (4) and
 8 ~~45.43 (7m)~~ 45.80 (9).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

9 **SECTION 36.** 20.485 (2) (tf) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 20.485 (2) (tf) ~~Veterans'~~ *Veterans tuition reimbursement program*. Biennially,
 11 the amounts in the schedule for the ~~veterans'~~ veterans tuition reimbursement
 12 program under s. ~~45.25~~ 45.20 (2). Notwithstanding s. 20.001 (3) (a), the department
 13 may encumber moneys under this appropriation for the biennium up to 60 days after
 14 the end of that biennium if an estimate is first submitted to the department of
 15 administration showing the amounts that will be encumbered during that 60-day
 16 period.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

17 **SECTION 37.** 20.485 (2) (th) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 20.485 (2) (th) *Correspondence courses and part-time classroom study*.
 19 Biennially, the amounts in the schedule for the ~~veterans'~~ veterans correspondence
 20 courses and part-time classroom study program under s. ~~45.396~~ 45.20 (3).
 21 Notwithstanding ss. 16.52 (5) and 20.001 (3) (a), after June 30, 1998, the department

1 may encumber moneys under this appropriation for the biennium up to 60 days after
 2 the end of that biennium if an estimate is first submitted to and approved by the
 3 secretary of administration showing the amounts that will be encumbered during
 4 that 60-day period.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

5 **SECTION 38.** 20.485 (2) (tj) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 20.485 (2) (tj) *Retraining grant assistance program.* The amounts in the
 7 schedule for the ~~veterans'~~ veterans retraining ~~grant~~ assistance program under s.
 8 ~~45.397~~ 45.21.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

9 **SECTION 39.** 20.485 (2) (u) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 20.485 (2) (u) *Administration of loans and aids to veterans.* The amounts in
 11 the schedule for the administration of loans and aids to veterans, and for payment
 12 of legal services under s. ~~45.35 (14) (d)~~ 45.03 (13) (d).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

13 **SECTION 40.** 20.485 (2) (vg) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 20.485 (2) (vg) *Health care aid grants.* The amounts in the schedule for the
 15 payment of benefits to veterans and their dependents under s. ~~45.351 (1)~~ 45.40 (2).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

16 **SECTION 41.** 20.485 (2) (vm) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 20.485 (2) (vm) *Subsistence grants aid.* The amounts in the schedule for
 18 payment of subsistence ~~grants aid~~ aid to veterans and their dependents under s. ~~45.351~~
 19 ~~(1)~~ 45.40 (1).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

1 **SECTION 42.** 20.485 (2) (vw) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 20.485 (2) (vw) *Payments to veterans organizations for claims service.* The
3 amounts in the schedule to pay veterans organizations for claims services as
4 prescribed in s. ~~45.353~~ 45.41.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

5 **SECTION 43.** 20.485 (2) (vx) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 20.485 (2) (vx) *County grants.* The amounts in the schedule for payment of
7 grants under s. ~~45.43 (7)~~ 45.80 (8).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

8 **SECTION 44.** 20.485 (2) (vz) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 20.485 (2) (vz) *American Indian grants.* The amounts in the schedule for
10 grants to American Indian tribes and bands under s. ~~45.35 (14) (h)~~ 45.80 (8) (d).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

11 **SECTION 45.** 20.485 (2) (wd) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 20.485 (2) (wd) *Operation of Wisconsin ^{Veterans Museum} veterans museum.* The amounts in the
13 schedule for the operation of the Wisconsin ~~veterans museum~~ ^{Veterans Museum} under s. ~~45.014~~ 45.07.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

14 **SECTION 46.** 20.485 (2) (x) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 20.485 (2) (x) *Federal per diem payments.* The amounts in the schedule for the
16 provision of assistance to veterans under s. ~~45.357~~ 45.43. All moneys received from
17 the federal government as per diem payments for veterans participating in the
18 veterans assistance program under s. ~~45.357~~ 45.43 shall be credited to this
19 appropriation account.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

1 **SECTION 47.** 20.485 (2) (yn) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 20.485 (2) (yn) *Veterans trust fund loans and expenses.* Biennially, the amounts
3 in the schedule for the purpose of providing loans under s. ~~45.356~~ 45.42 and for the
4 payment of expenses and other payments as a consequence of being a mortgagee or
5 owner under home improvement loans made under s. 45.79 (7) (c), 1997 stats. or
6 under s. 45.351 (2), 1995 stats., s. 45.352, 1971 stats., s. 45.80, 1989 stats., and s.
7 ~~45.356~~ 45.42. All moneys received under ss. ~~45.356~~ (9) (a) and (b) 45.42 (8) (a) and
8 (b) and ~~45.79~~ (7) (e) 45.37 (7) (c) for the purpose of providing loans under the personal
9 loan program under s. ~~45.356~~ 45.42 shall be credited to this appropriation account.
10 All payments of interest and repayments of principal for loans made under s. 45.351
11 (2), 1995 stats., s. 45.352, 1971 stats., s. 45.80, 1989 stats., s. ~~45.356~~ and s. 45.79 (7)
12 (c), 1997 stats. shall revert to the veterans trust fund.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

13 **SECTION 48.** 20.485 (2) (yo) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 20.485 (2) (yo) *Debt payment.* A sum sufficient for the payment of obligations
15 incurred for moneys received under s. ~~45.356~~ (9) (a) and (b) 45.42 (8) (a) and (b).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

16 **SECTION 49.** 20.485 (2) (z) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 20.485 (2) (z) *Gifts.* All moneys received under s. ~~45.35~~ (13) (a) 45.03 (12) (a)
18 to be used as provided in that subsection.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

19 **SECTION 50.** 20.485 (2) (zm) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 20.485 (2) (zm) *Museum gifts and bequests*. All moneys received under s. ~~45.35~~
2 ~~(13) (b)~~ 45.03 (12) (b) to be used as provided in that subsection.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

3 **SECTION 51.** 20.485 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 20.485 (3) (b) *Self insurance*. A sum sufficient to cover deficiencies in the
5 amounts necessary to repay principal and interest on veterans housing loans made
6 under s. ~~45.79~~ 45.37 and financed by bonds sold pursuant to under s. 234.40.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

7 **SECTION 52.** 20.485 (3) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 20.485 (3) (e) *General program deficiency*. A sum sufficient to pay any general
9 program deficiency under s. ~~45.79~~ 45.37, including any deficiency in the capital
10 reserve fund requirement under s. 234.42.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

11 **SECTION 53.** 20.485 (3) (q) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 20.485 (3) (q) *Foreclosure loss payments*. As a continuing appropriation from
13 the veterans mortgage loan repayment fund, all moneys deposited and held in
14 accounts in the veterans mortgage loan repayment fund to pay costs under s. ~~45.79~~
15 ~~(7) (a) 3. and 7.~~ 45.37 (7) (a) 3. and 7., for the purpose of paying costs under s. ~~45.79~~
16 ~~(7) (a) 3. and 7.~~ 45.37 (7) (a) 3. and 7.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

17 **SECTION 54.** 20.485 (3) (rm) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 20.485 (3) (rm) *Other reserves*. As a continuing appropriation from the
19 veterans mortgage loan repayment fund, all moneys deposited and held in the
20 veterans mortgage loan repayment fund to pay costs under s. ~~45.79 (7) (a) 5. to 8. and~~

1 ~~10. 45.37 (7) (a) 5. to 8. and 10.,~~ for the purposes under s. ~~45.79 (7) (a) 5. to 8. and 10~~
 2 ~~45.37 (7) (a) 5. to 8. and 10.~~

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

3 **SECTION 55.** 20.485 (3) (s) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 20.485 (3) (s) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule from
 5 the veterans mortgage loan repayment fund for general program operations of the
 6 veterans mortgage loan program under s. ~~45.79~~ 45.37.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

7 **SECTION 56.** 20.485 (3) (sm) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 20.485 (3) (sm) *County grants.* The amounts in the schedule from the veterans
 9 mortgage loan repayment fund for payment of grants made under s. ~~45.43 (7)~~ 45.80
 10 (8).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

11 **SECTION 57.** 20.485 (3) (t) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 20.485 (3) (t) *Debt service.* As a continuing appropriation from the veterans
 13 mortgage loan repayment fund, all moneys deposited and held in accounts in the
 14 veterans mortgage loan repayment fund to reimburse s. 20.866 (1) (u) for the
 15 payment of debt service costs incurred in providing veterans mortgage loans under
 16 s. ~~45.79 (6) (a)~~ 45.37 (6) (a) and for debt service costs incurred in contracting public
 17 debt for any of the purposes under s. 18.04 (5), for these purposes.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

18 **SECTION 58.** 20.485 (3) (v) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 20.485 (3) (v) *Revenue obligation repayment.* All moneys received in the fund
 20 or funds created under s. ~~45.79 (9)~~ 45.37 (10) for the purposes of retiring revenue

1 obligations, providing reserves, funding additional loans, purchasing assumed
2 mortgages and funding program operations under s. ~~45.79 (6) (e) and (9)~~ 45.37 (6) (c)
3 and (10). All moneys received are irrevocably appropriated in accordance with
4 subch. II of ch. 18 and further established in resolutions authorizing the issuance of
5 revenue obligations and setting forth the distribution of funds received thereafter.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

6 **SECTION 59.** 20.485 (3) (w) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 20.485 (3) (w) *Revenue obligation funding.* As a continuing appropriation, all
8 proceeds from revenue obligations issued under s. ~~45.79 (6) (e)~~ 45.37 (6) (c) and
9 deposited in the fund created under s. 18.57 (1), for the costs of issuance and
10 management of the obligations, to provide related reserve funds and for the purposes
11 of s. ~~45.79~~ 45.37. Estimated disbursements under this paragraph shall not be
12 included in the schedule under s. 20.005.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

13 **SECTION 60.** 20.485 (3) (wd) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 20.485 (3) (wd) *Loan-servicing administration.* From the veterans mortgage
15 loan repayment fund, the amounts in the schedule for administrative costs of
16 servicing loans under s. ~~45.79 (5) (a) 10~~ 45.37 (5) (a) 10.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

17 **SECTION 61.** 20.485 (3) (wg) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 20.485 (3) (wg) *Escrow payments, recoveries, and refunds.* From the veterans
19 mortgage loan repayment fund, all moneys received by the department under s.

1 ~~45.79 (5) (a) 6.~~ 45.37 (5) (a) 6. to make payments required of the department under

2 s. ~~45.79 (5) (a) 6.~~ 45.37 (5) (a) 6. ^{plain}

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

3 **SECTION 62.** 20.485 (3) (wp) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 20.485 (3) (wp) *Loan-servicing rights.* Biennially, from the veterans mortgage

5 loan repayment fund, the amounts in the schedule to purchase loan-servicing rights

6 from authorized lenders under s. ~~45.79 (5) (a) 10~~ 45.37 (5) (a) 10.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

7 **SECTION 63.** 20.485 (4) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 20.485 (4) (g) *Cemetery operations.* The amounts in the schedule for the care

9 and operation of the veterans memorial cemeteries under s. ~~45.358~~ 45.61 other than

10 those costs provided under pars. (q) and (r). All moneys received under s. ~~45.358 (3m)~~

11 45.61 ³ shall be credited to this appropriation account.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

12 **SECTION 64.** 20.485 (4) (h) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 20.485 (4) (h) *Gifts, grants and bequests.* All moneys received under s. ~~45.358~~

14 ~~(4) 45.61~~ ² as gifts, grants or bequests to be expended for the purposes made.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

15 **SECTION 65.** 20.485 (4) (m) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 20.485 (4) (m) *Federal aid; cemetery operations and burials.* All moneys

17 received from the federal government for the operation of veterans memorial

18 cemeteries under s. ~~45.358~~ 45.61 as authorized by the governor under s. 16.54, to be

19 used for that purpose.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

1 **SECTION 66.** 20.485 (4) (q) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 20.485 (4) (q) *Cemetery administration and maintenance.* From the veterans
3 trust fund, the amounts in the schedule for the administrative and maintenance
4 costs of operating the veterans memorial cemeteries under s. ~~45.358~~ 45.61.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

5 **SECTION 67.** 20.485 (4) (r) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 20.485 (4) (r) *Cemetery energy costs.* From the veterans trust fund, the amounts
7 in the schedule to be used at the veterans memorial cemeteries operated under s.
8 ~~45.358~~ 45.61 for utilities and for fuel, heat and air conditioning and for costs incurred
9 by or on behalf of the department of veterans affairs under ss. 16.858 and 16.895.

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

10 **SECTION 68.** 20.485 (5) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 20.485 (5) (g) *Proprietary school programs.* The amounts in the schedule for
12 the examination and approval of proprietary school programs. All moneys received
13 from the issuance of solicitor's permits under s. ~~45.54 (8)~~ 39.90 (6) and fees under s.
14 ~~45.54 (10)~~ 39.90 (7) shall be credited to this appropriation. *From the*
except amount those fees
credited to par (gm)

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

15 **SECTION 69.** 20.485 (5) (gm) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 20.485 (5) (gm) *Student protection.* All moneys received from the fees received
17 under s. ~~45.54 (10) (e) 4.~~ 39.90 (7) (c) 4. for the purpose of indemnifying students,
18 parents, or sponsors under s. ~~45.54 (10) (a)~~ 39.90 (7) (a).

History: 1971 c. 93, 125, 198, 215; 1973 c. 4, 90; 1973 c. 208 ss. 2, 3, 17; 1973 c. 333 s. 201m; 1973 c. 340; 1975 c. 26, 39, 198, 200, 224; 1977 c. 4, 29, 237; 1977 c. 418 s. 929 (55); 1977 c. 447; 1979 c. 4, 34, 155; 1981 c. 20 ss. 377g to 399, 2202 (55) (a); 1981 c. 93, 237; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 333 s. 6; 1985 a. 6, 29; 1987 a. 27, 399; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 44, 165, 269; 1993 a. 16, 254, 490; 1995 a. 27, 225; 1997 a. 27; 1999 a. 2; 1999 a. 9 ss. 245m, 498t to 504; 1999 a. 63, 136; 2001 a. 16, 74, 103, 106; 2003 a. 33, 42.

19 **SECTION 70.** 20.866 (2) (zn) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 20.866 (2) (zn) *Veterans affairs; self-amortizing mortgage loans.* From the
2 capital improvement fund, a sum sufficient for the department of veterans affairs for
3 loans to veterans under s. ~~45.79 (6) (a)~~ 45.37 (6) (a). The state may contract public
4 debt in an amount not to exceed \$2,120,840,000 for this purpose.

History: 1971 c. 42; 1971 c. 100 s. 23; 1971 c. 125, 211, 215, 236, 307, 330, 336; 1973 c. 90 ss. 148 to 149m, 555m (2); 1973 c. 333; 1975 c. 26, 39, 40, 41, 200, 224, 422; 1977 c. 4, 6; 1977 c. 29 ss. 385 to 387, 1650m (4), 1656 (43); 1977 c. 418; 1979 c. 4; 1979 c. 34 ss. 675a to 677v, 2102 (6) (a), (39) (a), (52) (a); 1979 c. 107, 221; 1981 c. 1 ss. 17, 18, 47; 1981 c. 20, 108, 317, 336; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 36 s. 96 (4); 1983 a. 97, 192, 195, 212; 1983 a. 410 s. 2202 (2); 1985 a. 6; 1985 a. 8 ss. 4, 12; 1985 a. 29 ss. 589m to 598, 3202 (23) (c), (26) (a), (53) (a); 1985 a. 77, 120, 332; 1987 a. 27, 295, 298, 399, 403, 409; 1989 a. 31, 46, 107, 122, 219, 336, 359, 366; 1991 a. 39, 51, 269, 309, 324; 1993 a. 2, 16, 98, 115, 213, 343, 377, 413, 437, 453, 485; 1995 a. 27 ss. 1159 to 1168s, 9126 (19), 9145 (1); 1995 a. 40, 57, 60, 113; 1995 a. 216, s. 30m and 9127; 1995 a. 227, 246, 372, 388, 416, 452; 1997 a. 27, 35, 61, 164, 237, 252; 1999 a. 4, 9, 146; 1999 a. 150 s. 672; 1999 a. 184; 2001 a. 12, 16, 103, 109; 2003 a. 33, 64, 91, 129.

5 **SECTION 71.** 21.11 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 21.11 (3) The adjutant general may activate members of the national guard for
7 the purpose of serving on an honors detail of a military ~~honors funeral~~ funeral honors
8 for a deceased veteran under s. ~~45.19~~ 45.60.

History: 1979 c. 221; 1991 a. 316; 1993 a. 246; 1999 a. 62, 36.

9 **SECTION 72.** 21.16 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 21.16 (1) No person may wear the uniform of the national guard or of the U.S.
11 army, air force, navy, or marine corps, or a reserve component of the U.S. armed
12 forces, except a person who is regularly enrolled in the U.S. army, air force, navy, or
13 marine corps, a reserve component of the U.S. armed forces, the national guard of
14 one of the states or one of the student cadet companies armed and recognized by the
15 national or a state government, a person retired from active service or a reserve
16 component, or a person who is ~~an inmate~~ a member of any veterans' or soldiers'
17 veterans home. Any person violating this subsection shall forfeit not less than \$10
18 nor more than \$100. The district attorney of the county in which any such offense
19 is committed shall bring an action in the name of the state against the offender.

History: 1979 c. 221; 1983 a. 27; 2003 a. 69.

20 **SECTION 73.** 21.49 (4) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 21.49 (4) (c) No guard member may receive a grant under sub. (3) for any
2 semester in which he or she received a grant payment under s. ~~45.25~~ 45.20 (2).

History: 1977 c. 29, 418; 1981 c. 20; 1985 a. 29; 1987 a. 27, 403; 1989 a. 31; 1991 a. 39, 269; 1993 a. 399; 1995 a. 19; 1995 a. 27, ss. 1219t to 1223, 9127 (1); 1995 a. 404; 1997 a. 27, 237; 1999 a. 9; 2001 a. 16; 2003 a. 33, 69, 83.

3 **SECTION 74.** 21.74 of the statutes is created to read:

4 **21.74 Soldiers and sailors civil relief act; federal service.** (1) In this
5 section, unless the context indicates otherwise:

6 (a) "Interest and penalties" means interest and penalties accruing on taxes
7 during the period of military service and 6 months thereafter. In case property is ^{several owners jointly own}
8 ~~owned jointly by several owners~~, other than property held jointly or as marital
9 property with the spouse of the person in military service, interest and penalties
10 means the proportionate share of the total interest and penalties commensurate
11 with the equity in the property of the person in military service.

12 (b) "Persons in military service" means any man or woman who is serving on
13 active duty in the U.S. armed forces, except service on active duty for training
14 purposes.

15 (c) "Property" means any real estate or personal property belonging to a person
16 in military service that was acquired prior to the commencement of military service
17 or that was acquired by descent.

18 (d) "Taxes" mean ^s_^ any general taxes or special assessments or tax certificates
19 evidencing those taxes and assessments not belonging to private buyers.

20 (2) In order to supplement and complement the provisions of 50 App. USC 501,
21 and to afford and obtain greater peace and security for persons in military service,
22 the enforcement of certain tax obligations or liabilities that may prejudice the
23 property rights of persons in military service may be temporarily suspended as
24 provided in this section.

1 (3) Any person while in the military service of the United States or within 6
2 months after terminating service, or the person's agent or attorney during that
3 period, may petition the circuit court ^{STET ↓ 1044 2} of in any county in which the person owns
4 property for relief under this section. Upon filing of the petition the court shall make
5 an order fixing the time of hearing and requiring the giving of notice of the hearing.
6 If after ^{the} hearing the court finds that the person is, or within 6 months next preceding
7 the filing of the petition was, in the military service of the United States and owns
8 property within the county on which taxes have fallen or will fall due, and that the
9 person's ability to pay the taxes has been materially adversely affected by reason of
10 being in military service, the court shall enter an order determining that the person
11 is entitled to relief under this section. The court may suspend proceedings for the
12 collection of taxes on the property for a period not exceeding 6 months after
13 termination of the military service of the person, or for the time reasonably necessary
14 to complete the agreement provided in sub. (7). Thereafter, the property shall not
15 be included in tax certificates issued to enforce collection of taxes on property, and
16 all proceedings for that purpose shall be suspended, except under terms that the
17 court may order.

18 (4) Whenever any tax or assessment on real property, including all special
19 assessments, is not paid when due, any interest or penalty under s. 74.47 and the
20 maximum limitation of 6% ^{SP} per year as provided ² by the ^{under} 50 App. USC 501 shall be
21 waived for the purpose and under the conditions specified in this section.

22 (5) The penalties and interest waived under this section are those for
23 nonpayment of all taxes or assessments, general or special, falling due during the
24 period of military service of any person against either real or personal property of
25 which the person is the bona fide owner or in which the person has an interest.

1 (6) The person owning or having an interest in any property in respect to which
2 the order under sub. (3) is made, or the person's agent or attorney, may file a certified
3 copy of the order of suspension with the county treasurer or with the city treasurer
4 of cities authorized by law to sell lands for the nonpayment of taxes as to the taxes
5 and assessments. The person shall file with the order an affidavit in triplicate, sworn
6 to by the person or agent or attorney, setting forth the name of the owner, the legal
7 description of the property, the type of property, when acquired, volume and page
8 number where the deed was recorded if acquired by deed and the name of the estate
9 if acquired by descent, amount of delinquent taxes if any, and the names of the
10 holders of any outstanding mortgage, lien or other encumbrance. Upon receipt of the
11 filing, the county treasurer or city treasurer shall record the order in the office of the
12 register of deeds of the county and file a copy in the office of the treasurer, who shall
13 make proper notation that a person in military service is the holder of the legal title
14 and has made application for special relief. The county treasurer or city treasurer
15 shall immediately forward an additional copy of the order and affidavit to the office
16 of the clerk of the town, city or village where the property is located, or if it is located
17 in a city authorized to sell lands for nonpayment of its taxes, to the commissioner of
18 assessments, who shall make an appropriate notation in the records.

19 (7) Any person seeking relief under this section, within 6 months after
20 termination of military service, or the person's agent or attorney, or in case of death
21 of the person, the personal representative, surviving spouse or heir, may apply to the
22 county treasurer of the county, or the city treasurer of a city authorized by law to sell
23 lands for the nonpayment of taxes, where the property is located, for an agreement
24 for scheduled installment payments, covering the taxes accrued during the person's
25 period of military service, provided that the taxes will be paid over a period of time

1 equal to a period no longer than twice the length of military service of the person, in
2 equal periodic installments of not less than \$10, and subject to any other terms as
3 may be just and reasonable.

4 (8) In the event ^{the applicant defaults} ~~default is made by the applicant~~ in the performance of any of
5 the provisions of the agreement, the treasurer shall notify the applicant of the
6 default and the amount and date due, by written notice either served personally or
7 by registered mail [§] return receipt requested [§] to the address set forth in the application.
8 If the defaulted payment is not fully made within 10 days after service of the notice,
9 then the treasurer, without further notice, may declare that the entire amount of the
10 tax subject to the scheduled installments is immediately due and payable and that
11 the agreement is terminated. The county treasurer shall notify the register of deeds
12 and the town, city [§] or village treasurer of the termination, or if the city treasurer of
13 cities authorized by law to sell lands for the nonpayment of taxes the latter shall
14 notify the register of deeds [§] and the county treasurer [§] and the local officers and shall
15 make appropriate notations of the termination on their records. The county
16 treasurer, or city treasurer as to taxes of cities authorized by law to sell land for the
17 nonpayment of taxes, may without further order of the court enforce the collection
18 of such tax or assessment and sell such tax certificates together with the penalties
19 and interest as may have accrued on the property from the date of default of the
20 scheduled installment payment.

21 **SECTION 75.** 21.78 [✓] of the statutes is created to read:

22 **21.78 Employees or officers in military service.** (1) The governing body
23 of any county, town, city, village, school district, or technical college district may
24 grant a leave of absence to any employee or officer who is inducted or who enlists in
25 the U.S. armed forces for a period of military service of not more than 4 years unless

1 the employee is involuntarily retained for a longer period. No salary or compensation
 2 of the employee or officer shall be paid, nor claim for the salary or compensation exist^s
 3 during the leave of absence, except as provided in this section. If the employee's or
 4 officer's salary or compensation is less in the U.S. armed forces than was paid by the
 5 county, town, city, village, school district, or technical college district, that
 6 governmental unit may pay the employee or officer the difference between the salary
 7 or compensation paid by the ^{U.S.}armed forces and the salary or compensation that the
 8 employee or officer was paid by the county, town, city, village, school district, or
 9 technical college district at the time that he or she enlisted in or was inducted into
 10 the U.S. armed forces.

11 (2) The governing body may provide for safeguarding the reinstatement and
 12 pension rights, as limited in this section, of any employee or officer so inducted or
 13 enlisted.

14 (3) No employee or officer who is appointed to fill the place of any employee or
 15 officer so inducted or enlisted shall acquire permanent tenure during ^{the}such period of
 16 replacement service.

17 (4) If the leave of absence under sub. (1) is granted to an elected or appointed
 18 official or employee and the official or employee has begun ^{in the U.S. armed forces} federal service, a
 19 temporary vacancy exists and a successor may be appointed to fill the unexpired
 20 term of the official or employee, or until the official or employee returns and files
 21 election to resume the office if the date of the filing is prior to the expiration of the
 22 term. The appointment shall be made in the manner provided for the filling of
 23 vacancies caused by death, resignation or otherwise, except that no election need be
 24 held to fill a temporary vacancy. The appointee has all the powers, duties, liabilities^s
 25 and responsibilities and shall be paid and receive the compensation and other

forces
 STET
 comma

1 benefits of the office or position, unless otherwise provided by the governing body.
2 Within 40 days after the termination of the federal service^{in the U.S. armed forces} the elected or appointed
3 official or employee, upon filing with the clerk of the governmental unit, a statement
4 under oath of termination and that the official or employee elects to resume the office
5 or position, may resume the office or position for the remainder of the term for which
6 elected or appointed. The person temporarily filling the vacancy shall cease to hold
7 the office on the date of the filing.

8 (b) (5) In cities of the 3rd class with a commission plan of government, in case of
9 temporary or permanent vacancies in the office of mayor, the vice mayor shall
10 temporarily succeed to the office of mayor for the balance of the unexpired term for
11 which the mayor was elected unless sooner terminated as provided in s. 17.035 (3).
12 A temporary or permanent vacancy created in the office of council member may be
13 filled as provided in this section. The term of the person appointed temporarily to
14 the office of council member shall not extend beyond the expiration of the term of the
15 office vacated and the temporary term shall be vacated sooner as provided for in s.
16 17.035 (3).

17 SECTION 76. 21.79 of the statutes is created to read:

18 **21.79 Reemployment after completion of military service.** (1) (a) Any
19 person who has enlisted or enlists in or who has been or is inducted or ordered into
20 active service in the U.S. armed forces pursuant to the 50 App. USC 301, 401, and
21 451, or P.L. 87-117, and any person whose services are requested by the federal
22 government for national defense work as a civilian during a period officially
23 proclaimed to be a national emergency or a limited national emergency, who, in order
24 to perform the training or service, has left or leaves a position, other than a
25 temporary position, in the employ of any political subdivision of the state or in the

1 employ of any private or other employer, shall be restored to that position or to a
2 position of like seniority, status, pay and salary advancement as though service
3 toward seniority, status, pay or salary advancement had not been interrupted by the
4 absence if all of the following: *our conditions are met*

5 1. The person presents to the employer evidence of satisfactory completion of
6 the period of training or civilian service, or of discharge from the ^{U.S.} armed forces under
7 conditions other than dishonorable.

8 2. The person is still qualified to perform the duties of ^{the} such position.

9 3. The person makes application for reemployment and resumes work within
10 90 days after completion of the training or services, military or civilian, or was so
11 discharged from the ^{U.S.} armed forces, or within 6 months after release from
12 hospitalization for service-connected injury or disease.

13 4. The employer's circumstances have not ^g so changed as to make it impossible
14 or unreasonable to ^r restore the person.

15 5. The military service was not for more than 4 years unless extended by law.

16 (b) Except as provided in par. (c), in the event of any dispute ^{relating to the provisions} arising under par.
17 (a), the person may file a complaint regarding the matter with the department of
18 workforce development. The department of workforce development shall process
19 any complaint made under this paragraph in the same manner as employment
20 discrimination complaints are processed under s. 111.39.

21 (c) If a dispute arises ^{relating to the provisions of} under par. (a) regarding a classified employee of the state, ^{par. (a)}
22 the complaint shall be filed with the director of the office of state employment
23 relations. A decision of the director of the office of state employment relations may
24 be reviewed under ch. 227.

(2) The service of any person who is or was restored to a position in accordance with sub. (1) shall be considered not to be interrupted by the absence, except for the receipt of pay or other compensation for the period of the absence and he or she shall be entitled to participate in insurance, pensions, retirement plans or other benefits offered by the employer under established rules and practices relating to employees on furlough or leave of absence in effect with the employer at the time the person entered or was enlisted, inducted or ordered into the forces and service. The person whose position was restored may not be discharged from the position without cause within one year after restoration and the discharge is subject to all federal or state law affecting any municipal or private employment and to the provisions of contracts that may exist between employer and employee. Each county, town, city or village shall contribute or pay all contributions of the employer to the applicable and existent pension, annuity or retirement system as though the service of the employee had not been interrupted by military service.

are inconsistent with earlier use

(3) If an employer fails or refuses to comply with subs. (1) and (2), a person entitled to the benefits under subs. (1) and (2) may petition the circuit court to require the employer to comply with those subsections. Upon the filing of the petition and on reasonable notice to the employer, the court may require the employer to comply with those subsections and to compensate the person for any loss of wages or benefits suffered by reason of the employer's action. The court shall order a speedy hearing and shall advance the case on the calendar. No fees or court costs may be taxed against a person petitioning the court under this subsection. The action commenced under this subsection against a private employer, and the trial or hearing of the action, shall be in any county in which the employment took place or in which the

***** The references to county, town, city, or village are of political subdivisions.*

NOTE:

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

1 private employer maintains a place of business, and in all other cases shall be as
2 provided in s. 801.50.

3 (4) No person who is appointed in the service of the state or of any county, city,
4 village or town to fill the place of a person entering ^{in the US Armed Forces} the federal service under sub. (1) or
5 shall acquire permanent tenure during the period of that replacement service. federal government service

6 (5) If the decision of the circuit court is appealed the person who petition the
7 circuit court under sub. (3) need not file an appeal bond for the security for costs on
8 the appeal.

9 (6) The restoration of classified employees of the state shall be governed by s.
10 230.32. The restoration of unclassified state employees shall be governed by this
11 section.

12 **SECTION 77.** 21.80 (3) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 21.80 (3) (g) *Veterans preferences.* The right of a person to reemployment under
14 this subsection does not entitle the person to retention, preference, or displacement
15 rights over any person who has a superior claim under s. ~~45.35 (4)~~ 45.03 (4), 62.13
16 (4) (d), 63.08 (1) (f), 63.37, 63.39 (2m), 66.0509 (1), 230.15 (2m), 230.16 (7) or (7m),
17 230.21 (1m), 230.25, or 230.275.

History: 2001 a. 26, 109; 2003 a. 33, 69.

18 **SECTION 78.** 25.17 (1) (xp) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 25.17 (1) (xp) Veterans mortgage loan repayment fund (s. ~~45.79 (7)~~ 45.37 (7));

History: 1971 c. 41 s. 12; 1971 c. 74; 1971 c. 100 s. 23; 1971 c. 125 s. 522 (1); 1971 c. 164; 1971 c. 214 s. 147; 1971 c. 260 s. 92 (3) to (5); 1973 c. 117, 137, 151; 1973 c. 208 s. 17; 1973 c. 209, 333, 336; 1975 c. 26, 27, 39, 118, 147, 164, 180, 189, 200, 422; 1977 c. 29 ss. 439 to 439f, 1654 (1); 1977 c. 31, 107, 377, 418, 423; 1979 c. 32; 1979 c. 34 ss. 705 to 707b, 2102 (56) (a); 1979 c. 102; 1979 c. 109 s. 16; 1979 c. 221; 1979 c. 318 ss. 1 to 3; 1979 c. 361 s. 113; 1981 c. 20, 86; 1981 c. 96 ss. 18 to 21, 67; 1981 c. 169, 386; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 36 ss. 31, 96 (4); 1983 a. 81 s. 11; 1983 a. 83 s. 20; 1983 a. 142, 189, 192, 368, 410; 1985 a. 25, 29, 53, 120; 1985 a. 332 s. 251 (1); 1987 a. 27, 38, 119, 186, 252, 399; 1989 a. 13, 31, 64, 187, 307, 335, 359, 366; 1991 a. 32, 38, 39, 152, 174, 221, 269, 315; 1993 a. 16, 112, 263, 477; 1995 a. 27 ss. 1394m to 1396, 9116 (5); 1995 a. 56, 213, 227, 274, 403; 1997 a. 27, 35, 191; 1999 a. 9, 11, 63, 65, 83, 167, 196; 2001 a. 7, 13, 16, 92, 104, 109; 2003 a. 33, 35, 48, 91, 111, 299.

20 **SECTION 79.** 25.17 (1) (yv) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 25.17 (1) (yv) Wisconsin Veterans Home at King and veterans facilities homes
22 members fund (s. 25.37);

History: 1971 c. 41 s. 12; 1971 c. 74; 1971 c. 100 s. 23; 1971 c. 125 s. 522 (1); 1971 c. 164; 1971 c. 214 s. 147; 1971 c. 260 s. 92 (3) to (5); 1973 c. 117, 137, 151; 1973 c. 208 s. 17; 1973 c. 209, 333, 336; 1975 c. 26, 27, 39, 118, 147, 164, 180, 189, 200, 422; 1977 c. 29 ss. 439 to 439f, 1654 (1); 1977 c. 31, 107, 377, 418, 423; 1979 c. 32; 1979

c. 34 ss. 705 to 707b, 2102 (56) (a); 1979 c. 102; 1979 c. 109 s. 16; 1979 c. 221; 1979 c. 318 ss. 1 to 3; 1979 c. 361 s. 113; 1981 c. 20, 86; 1981 c. 96 ss. 18 to 21, 67; 1981 c. 169, 386; 1983 a. 27; 1983 a. 36 ss. 31, 96 (4); 1983 a. 81 s. 11; 1983 a. 83 s. 20; 1983 a. 142, 189, 192, 368, 410; 1985 a. 25, 29, 53, 120; 1985 a. 332 s. 251 (1); 1987 a. 27, 38, 119, 186, 252, 399; 1989 a. 13, 31, 64, 187, 307, 335, 359, 366; 1991 a. 32, 38, 39, 152, 174, 221, 269, 315; 1993 a. 16, 112, 263, 477; 1995 a. 27 ss. 1394m to 1396, 9116 (5); 1995 a. 56, 213, 227, 274, 403; 1997 a. 27, 35, 191; 1999 a. 9, 11, 63, 65, 83, 167, 196; 2001 a. 7, 13, 16, 92, 104, 109; 2003 a. 33, 35, 48, 91, 111, 299.

1 **SECTION 80.** 25.36 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 25.36 (1) Except as provided in sub. (2), all moneys appropriated or transferred
3 by law shall constitute the veterans trust fund which shall be used for the lending
4 of money to the mortgage loan repayment fund under s. ~~45.35 (22)~~ 45.37 (5) (a) 12.
5 and for the veterans programs under ss. 20.485 (2) (m), (mn), (tm), (u), (v), (vo), (vy),
6 (vz), (w), (z), and (zm), ~~45.014, 45.25, 45.35 (23), 45.351 (1), 45.353, 45.356, 45.357,
7 ~~45.396, 45.397, and 45.43 (7)~~ 45.03 (19), 45.07, 45.20, 45.21, 45.40 (1), 45.41, 45.42,
8 45.43, and 45.80 (8) and administered by the department of veterans affairs,
9 including all moneys received from the federal government for the benefit of veterans
10 or their dependents; all moneys paid as interest on and repayment of loans under the
11 post-war rehabilitation fund; soldiers rehabilitation fund, veterans housing funds
12 as they existed prior to July 1, 1961; all moneys paid as interest on and repayment
13 of loans under this fund; all moneys paid as expenses for, interest on, and repayment
14 of veterans trust fund stabilization loans under s. 45.356, 1995 stats.; all moneys
15 paid as expenses for, interest on, and repayment of veterans personal loans; the net
16 proceeds from the sale of mortgaged properties related to veterans personal loans;
17 all mortgages issued with the proceeds of the 1981 veterans home loan revenue bond
18 issuance purchased with moneys in the veterans trust fund; all moneys received from
19 the state investment board under s. ~~45.356 (9) (b)~~ 45.42 (8) (b); all moneys received
20 from the veterans mortgage loan repayment fund under s. ~~45.79 (7) (a) and (c)~~ 45.37
21 (7) (a) and (c); and all gifts of money received by the board of veterans affairs for the
22 purposes of this fund.~~

History: 1993 a. 16, 254; 1995 a. 27, 255; 1997 a. 27; 2001 a. 16; 2003 a. 33, 83.

23 **SECTION 81.** 25.37 of the statutes is amended to read:

1 **25.37 Wisconsin veterans facilities homes members fund.** There is
 2 established a separate nonlapsible trust fund designated as the Wisconsin veterans
 3 ~~facilities homes~~ members fund. The fund shall consist of moneys belonging to
 4 persons residing in Wisconsin veterans ~~facilities, including members of the~~
 5 ~~Wisconsin Veterans Home at King~~ homes, that are paid to the ~~home and veterans~~
 6 ~~facilities homes~~ and that are transferred into the fund by the department of veterans
 7 affairs under s. ~~45.37 (9e)~~ 45.51 (8).

History: 1991 a. 39; 1999 a. 63.

8 **SECTION 82.** 28.035 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 28.035 (3) (a) The written lease entered into between the Wisconsin state
 10 department of the American Legion and the department of natural resources dated
 11 June 15, 1944, which leases Camp American Legion for a period of 10 years
 12 commencing June 1, 1944, shall continue in full force for an additional 10 years, and
 13 may be renewed for additional 10-year periods ~~thereafter~~, notwithstanding the
 14 expiration of the term expressed ~~therein~~ in the lease so long as the Wisconsin state
 15 department of the American Legion or any of the American Legion posts organized
 16 under s. 188.08 maintains on ~~such~~ the property structures which were constructed
 17 prior to May 31, 1956, at the expense of the Wisconsin state department of the
 18 American Legion or any ~~such~~ post, for the purpose of the rehabilitation, restoration,
 19 or recreation of veterans and their dependents of the Spanish-American ^{War} ~~war~~, the
 20 Philippine ^{Insurrection} ~~insurrection~~, the Mexican border service, World Wars I and II, the Korean
 21 conflict, the Vietnam ^{War} ~~war~~, the Iraq ^{War} ~~war~~, and service in Grenada, Lebanon, Panama,
 22 ~~Somalia or a Middle East~~ a crisis under s. 45.34 zone, as defined in s. 45.01 (11).

History: 1971 c. 164; 1977 c. 29 s. 537; 1977 c. 224; 1979 c. 34; 1983 a. 430; 1987 a. 399; 1991 a. 2, 165; 1993 a. 16; 2003 a. 83.

23 **SECTION 83.** 29.219 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 29.219 (2) (c) A resident annual fishing license issued to any resident who is
2 a member of the ~~Wisconsin Veterans Home at King or at the facilities operated by the~~
3 ~~department of veterans affairs under s. 45.385~~ a Wisconsin veterans home under s.
4 45.50 shall be issued at no charge.

History: 1971 c. 22, 282; 1973 c. 90 s. 538; 1975 c. 39; 1975 c. 189 s. 99 (2); 1975 c. 216, 421; 1977 c. 29, 418; 1979 c. 34, 221; 1981 c. 130; 1983 a. 27 ss. 749 to 761; 1985 a. 326; 1987 a. 27; 1991 a. 39, 269; 1993 a. 16, 153, 217; 1995 a. 27; 1997 a. 1, 27, 191; 1997 a. 248 ss. 318 to 332; Stats. 1997 s. 29.219; 1999 a. 63.

5 **SECTION 84.** 29.506 (7m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 29.506 (7m) (a) The department shall issue a taxidermy school permit to a
7 person who applies for the permit; who, on August 15, 1991, holds a valid
8 taxidermist permit issued under this section; and who, on August 15, 1991, operates
9 a taxidermy school approved by the educational approval board under s. 45.54 39.90.

10 **SECTION 85.** 29.563 (3) (a) 8. of the statutes is amended to read:

11 29.563 (3) (a) 8. Annual fishing issued to a resident at ~~Wisconsin Veterans~~
12 ~~Home at King and at the facilities operated by the department of veterans affairs~~
13 ~~under s. 45.385~~ a Wisconsin veterans home under s. 45.50: \$0.

History: 1997 a. 248; 1999 a. 9, 32, 47, 63, 186; 2001 a. 16, 17, 56, 109; 2003 a. 33.

14 **SECTION 86.** 36.27 (2) (b) 4. of the statutes is amended to read:

15 36.27 (2) (b) 4. A person who ~~has served on active duty under honorable~~
16 ~~conditions in the U.S. armed forces or in forces incorporated in the U.S. armed forces,~~
17 ~~except service on active duty for training purposes, who meets one of the conditions~~
18 ~~in s. 45.001 (4) (a) 1. a. to d.~~ is a veteran, as defined in s. 45.01 (12), and who is a
19 resident for purposes of receiving benefits under ch. 45, is entitled to the exemption
20 under par. (a).

History: 1973 c. 333 ss. 68g, 68k, 201f (2); 1973 c. 335; 1975 c. 39, 199; 1977 c. 29; 1981 c. 20; 1983 a. 407; 1985 a. 51, 192; 1987 a. 399; 1989 a. 31 ss. 709p to 710, 2908; 1989 a. 67, 181, 359; 1991 a. 39, 168, 169; 1993 a. 16; 1995 a. 27, 228; 1997 a. 27, 163, 237; 1999 a. 9, 130, 154, 186; 2001 a. 16, 38; 2003 a. 33 ss. 936, 9160; 2003 a. 42, 185, 320.

21 **SECTION 87.** 36.27 (3r) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 36.27 (3r) FEE REMISSIONS FOR FUNERAL ASSISTANTS. The board shall grant a \$25
23 remission of nonresident tuition or academic fees to any student enrolled in the

1 system as an undergraduate for each valid voucher issued to the student under s.
 2 ~~45.19 (3)~~ 45.60 (3).

History: 1973 c. 333 ss. 68g, 68k, 201f (2); 1973 c. 335; 1975 c. 39, 199; 1977 c. 29; 1981 c. 20; 1983 a. 407; 1985 a. 51, 192; 1987 a. 399; 1989 a. 31 ss. 709p to 710, 2908; 1989 a. 67, 181, 359; 1991 a. 39, 168, 169; 1993 a. 16; 1995 a. 27, 228; 1997 a. 27, 163, 237; 1999 a. 9, 130, 154, 186; 2001 a. 16, 38; 2003 a. 33 ss. 936, 9160; 2003 a. 42, 185, 320.

3 **SECTION 88.** 38.24 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 38.24 (6) FEE REMISSIONS FOR FUNERAL ASSISTANTS. The district board shall grant
 5 a \$25 remission of fees under subs. (1m) and (3) to a student for each valid voucher
 6 issued to the student under s. ~~45.19 (3)~~ 45.60 (3).

History: 1971 c. 154, 211, 228; 1975 c. 39, 224; 1977 c. 29, 418; 1981 c. 20; 1983 a. 27; 1985 a. 29; 1987 a. 27; 1989 a. 31, 107, 336; 1991 a. 39 ss. 1103 to 1108m, 1117; 1993 a. 16, 223, 491; 1995 a. 27 s. 9126 (19); 1995 a. 77, 228; 1997 a. 27, 163, 292; 1999 a. 32 s. 97; 1999 a. 130, 154; 2003 a. 42.

7 **SECTION 89.** Subchapter V (title) of chapter 39 [precedes 39.90] of the statutes
 8 is created to read:

9 **CHAPTER 39** ✓

10 **SUBCHAPTER V** ✓

11 **EDUCATIONAL APPROVAL BOARD** ✓

12 **SECTION 90.** 39.90 of the statutes is created to read:

13 **39.90 Educational approval board.** (1) DEFINITIONS. In this section unless
 14 the context clearly requires otherwise:

15 (a) "Board" means the educational approval board.

16 (b) "Course" means an organized unit of subject matter in which instruction is
 17 offered within a given period of time or ^{that} which covers a specified amount of related
 18 subject matter.

19 (c) "Course of instruction" means a series of classroom or correspondence
 20 courses ^{STET that have} having a unified purpose which lead to a diploma or degree or to an
 21 occupational or vocational objective.

22 (d) "Person" means any individual, partnership, association, corporation, or
 23 limited liability company, or any combination of these.

1 (e) "School" means any private trade, correspondence, business, or technical
2 school, but does not include any of the following:

3 1. In-state schools that are exempt from taxation under section 501 of the
4 Internal Revenue Code and that either were incorporated in this state prior to
5 January 1, 1992, or had their administrative headquarters and principal places of
6 business in this state prior to 1970.

7 2. Schools that are supported mainly by taxes.

8 3. Schools of a parochial or denominational character offering courses having
9 a sectarian objective.

10 4. Schools primarily offering instruction avocational or recreational in nature
11 and not leading to a vocational objective.

12 5. Courses conducted by employers exclusively for their employees.

13 6. Schools, courses of instruction and training programs ^{that} which are approved
14 or licensed and supervised by other state agencies and boards.

15 7. Schools approved by the department of public instruction for the training of
16 teachers.

17 8. Schools accredited by accrediting agencies recognized by the board.

18 (f) "Solicitor" means a person employed by or representing a school located
19 either within or outside this state ^{that} who, in places other than the actual business
20 premises of the school, personally attempts to secure the enrollment of a student in
21 ^{the} such school.

22 (g) "Teaching location" means the area and facilities designated for use by a
23 school required to be approved by the board under this section.

24 (2) ^{Duties & responsibilities} PURPOSE The ^{shall} purpose of the board is to protect the general public by
25 inspecting and approving private trade, correspondence, business, and technical

1 schools doing business within this state whether located within or outside this state,
 2 changes of ownership or control of these schools, teaching locations used by these
 3 schools, and courses of instruction offered by these schools and to regulate the
 4 soliciting of students for correspondence or classroom courses and courses of
 5 instruction offered by these schools.

6 (3) RULE-MAKING POWER. The board shall promulgate rules and establish
 7 standards necessary to carry out the purpose of this section.

8 (4) EMPLOYEES, QUARTERS. The board shall employ a person to perform the
 9 duties of an executive secretary and any other persons under the classified service
 10 that may be necessary to carry out the board's purpose. The person performing the
 11 duties of the executive secretary shall be in charge of the administrative functions
 12 of the board. The board shall, to the maximum extent practicable, keep its office with
 13 the department of veterans affairs.

14 (5) APPROVAL OF SCHOOLS GENERALLY. In order to protect students, prevent fraud
 15 and misrepresentation in the sale and advertising of courses and courses of
 16 instruction, and encourage schools to maintain courses and courses of instruction
 17 consistent in quality, content, and length with generally accepted educational
 18 standards, the board shall do all of the following:

19 (a) Investigate the adequacy of courses and courses of instruction offered by
 20 schools to residents of this state and establish minimum standards for those courses
 21 of instruction.

22 (b) Investigate the adequacy of schools' facilities, equipment, instructional
 23 materials, and instructional programs and establish minimum standards for those
 24 facilities, equipment, materials, and programs.

1 (c) Establish rules, standards, and criteria to prevent fraud and
2 misrepresentation in the sale and advertising of courses and courses of instruction.

3 (d) Promulgate rules restricting the negotiability of promissory instruments
4 received by schools in payment of tuition and other charges.

5 (e) Establish minimum standards for refund of the unused portion of tuition,
6 fees, and other charges if a student does not enter a course or course of instruction
7 or withdraws or is discontinued from the course.

8 (f) Require schools offering courses and courses of instruction to residents of
9 this state to furnish information concerning their facilities, curricula, instructors,
10 enrollment policies, tuition and other charges and fees, refund policies, and policies
11 concerning negotiability of promissory instruments received in payment of tuition
12 and other charges.

13 (g) Approve courses of instruction, schools, changes of ownership or control of
14 schools, and teaching locations meeting the requirements and standards established
15 by the board and complying with rules promulgated by the board and publish a list
16 of the schools and courses of instruction approved.

17 (h) Issue permits to solicitors when all board requirements have been met.

18 (i) Require schools to furnish a surety bond in an amount as provided by rule
19 of the board.

20 **(6) SOLICITING OF STUDENTS.** (a) *In general.* No solicitor representing any school
21 offering any course or course of instruction shall sell any course or course of
22 instruction or solicit students for a course or course of instruction in this state for a
23 consideration or remuneration, except upon the actual business premises of the
24 school, unless the solicitor first secures a solicitor's permit from the board. If the

1 solicitor represents more than one school, a separate permit shall be obtained for
2 each school ~~represented by the~~ ^{STET} ~~solicitor~~ ^{represents}

3 (b) *Solicitor's permit.* The application for a solicitor's permit shall be made on
4 a form furnished by the board and shall be accompanied by a fee and a surety bond
5 acceptable to the board in the sum of \$2,000. The board shall, by rule, specify the
6 amount of the fee for a solicitor's permit. The bond may be continuous and shall be
7 conditioned to provide indemnification to any student suffering loss as the result of
8 any fraud or misrepresentation used in procuring his or her enrollment or as a result
9 of the failure of the school to faithfully perform ^{the solicitor} the agreement made with the student
10 ~~by the solicitor~~, and may be supplied by the solicitor or by the school itself either as
11 a blanket bond covering each of its solicitors in the amount of \$2,000 or the surety
12 bond under sub. (5) (i). Upon approval of a permit, the board shall issue an
13 identification card to the solicitor giving his or her name and address, the name and
14 address of the employing school, and certifying that the person whose name appears
15 on the card is authorized to solicit students for the school. A permit shall be valid
16 for one year from the date issued. Liability under this paragraph of the surety on the
17 bond for each solicitor covered by the bond shall not exceed the sum of \$2,000 as an
18 aggregate for any and all students for all breaches of the conditions of the bond. The
19 surety of a bond may cancel the bond upon giving 30 days' notice in writing to the
20 board and shall be relieved of liability under this paragraph upon giving the notice
21 for any breach of condition occurring after the effective date of the cancellation. An
22 application for renewal shall be accompanied by a fee, a surety bond acceptable to
23 the board in the sum of \$2,000 if a continuous bond has not been furnished, and such
24 information as the board requests of the applicant. The board shall, by rule, specify
25 the amount of the fee for renewal of a solicitor's permit.

1 (c) *Refusal or revocation of permit.* The board may refuse to issue or renew, or
2 may revoke, any solicitor's permit upon one or any combination of the following
3 grounds:

4 1. Willful violation of this subsection or any rule promulgated by the board
5 under this section.

6 2. Furnishing false, misleading or incomplete information to the board.

7 3. Presenting information to prospective students relating to the school, a
8 course or ^a course of instruction ^{that} which is false, fraudulent, or ^{plain} misleading.

9 4. Refusal by the school to be represented to allow reasonable inspection or to
10 supply information after written request therefor by the board.

11 5. Failure of the school which the solicitor represents to meet requirements and
12 standards established by and to comply with rules promulgated by the board
13 pursuant to ^{under} sub. (5).

14 6. Cancellation of the solicitor's bond by surety.

15 7. Subject to ss. 111.321, 111.322, and 111.335, the applicant has an arrest or
16 conviction record.

17 (d) *Notice of refusal to issue or renew permit.* Notice of refusal to issue or renew
18 a permit or of the revocation of a permit shall be sent by registered mail to the last ^{known}
19 address of the applicant or permit holder shown in the records of the board.
20 Revocation of a permit shall be effective 10 days after the notice of revocation has
21 been mailed to the permit holder.

22 (e) *Request for appearance.* Within 20 days of the receipt of notice of the board's
23 refusal to issue or renew a permit or of the revocation of a permit, the applicant or
24 holder of the permit may request permission to appear before the board in person,
25 with or without counsel, to present reasons why the permit should be issued ^{renewed} or

1 reinstated. Upon receipt of ~~such~~ ² a ^{plan} request, the board shall grant a hearing to the
2 applicant or holder of the permit within 30 days giving that person at least 10 days'
3 notice of the date, time and place.

4 (f) *Recovery by students.* The bond in force under par. (b) shall not limit or
5 impair any right of recovery otherwise available under law, nor shall the amount of
6 the bond be relevant in determining the amount of damages or other relief to which
7 any plaintiff may be entitled.

8 (g) *Recovery on contracts.* No recovery shall be had by any school or its assignee
9 on any contract for or in connection with a course or course of instruction if the
10 representative who sold or solicited the course was not the holder of a solicitor's
11 permit under this subsection at the time of the sale or solicitation.

12 (h) *Enforcement.* The attorney general or any district attorney may bring an
13 action in circuit court for the enforcement of this subsection.

14 (i) *Penalty.* Whoever violates this subsection may be fined not more than \$500
15 or imprisoned not more than 3 months or both.

16 (7) PROPRIETARY SCHOOL APPROVAL. (a) *Authority.* All proprietary schools shall
17 be examined and approved by the board before operating in this state. Approval shall
18 be granted to schools meeting the criteria established by the board for a period not
19 to exceed one year. No school may advertise in this state unless approved by the
20 board. All approved schools shall submit quarterly reports, including information
21 on enrollment, number of teachers and their qualifications, course offerings, number
22 of graduates, number of graduates successfully employed, and such other
23 information as the board considers necessary. If a school closure results in losses to
24 students, parents, or sponsors, the board may authorize the full or partial payment
25 of those losses from the appropriation under s. 20.485 (5) (gm).

1 (b) *Application.* Application for initial approval of a school or a course of
2 instruction, approval of a teaching location, change of ownership, ^{plain} or control of a
3 school, renewal of approval of a school or reinstatement of approval of a school or
4 course of instruction ^{that} which has been revoked shall be made on a form furnished by
5 the board and shall be accompanied by a fee set by the board under par. (c) ^{is} and ~~such~~
6 ^{plain} any other information as the board considers necessary to evaluate the school in
7 carrying out the purpose of this section.

8 (c) *Fees; rule making.* The board shall promulgate rules to establish fees. In ^{the paid to the board}
9 promulgating rules to establish ^{the} fees, the board shall do all of the following:

10 1. Require that the amount of fees collected under this [✓] paragraph be sufficient
11 to cover all costs that the board incurs in examining and approving proprietary
12 schools under this subsection.

13 2. Give consideration to establishing a variable fee structure based on the size
14 of a proprietary school.

15 3. Specify a fee to accompany all applications under par. (b). [✓]

16 4. Specify a student protection fee.

17 (cm) *Limit on student protection fee.* The board shall discontinue collecting
18 annual student protection fees under par. (c) 4. [✓] during the period that the balance
19 in the fund created by those fees exceeds \$1,000,000.

20 (d) *Enforcement.* The attorney general or any district attorney may bring an
21 action in circuit court for the enforcement of this subsection, [✓] including bringing an
22 action to restrain by temporary or permanent injunction any violation of par. (a). [✓]

23 (e) *Penalties.* Any person who violates par. (a) [✓] may be required to forfeit not
24 more than \$500. Each day of operation in violation of par. (a) [✓] constitutes a separate
25 offense.

1 (f) *Other remedies.* In addition to any other remedies provided by law, a student
 2 who attends a school ^{that} which is in violation of par. (a) may bring a civil action to recover
 3 fees paid to the school in violation of par. (a) together with costs and disbursements,
 4 including reasonable attorney fees.

5 **SECTION 91.** 40.05 (4g) (a) 4. of the statutes is amended to read:

6 40.05 (4g) (a) 4. Has received a military leave of absence under s. 230.32 (3) (a)
 7 or 230.35 (3), under a collective bargaining agreement under subch. V of ch. 111 or
 8 under rules promulgated by the director of the office of state employment relations
 9 or is eligible for reemployment with the state under s. ~~45.50~~ 21.79 after completion
 10 of his or her service in the U.S. armed forces.

History: 1981 c. 96, 274, 278, 386; 1983 a. 9 s. 6; 1983 a. 27, 30; 1983 a. 46 ss. 2 to 4, 7; 1983 a. 140; 1983 a. 141 ss. 7 to 12, 20; 1983 a. 290, 504, 538; 1985 a. 29, 119, 135, 225; 1987 a. 27, 83, 107, 309, 356, 363; 1987 a. 403 s. 256; 1989 a. 13, 14, 31, 119, 122, 166, 182, 189, 230, 336, 355, 359; 1991 a. 32, 39, 107, 113, 141, 152, 189, 269; 1995 a. 27, 81, 88, 89, 240, 302; 1997 a. 35, 58, 149; 1999 a. 9, 11, 13, 104; 2001 a. 16; 2003 a. 33 ss. 1004 to 1015, 9160; 2003 a. 69, 117.

11 **SECTION 92.** Chapter 45 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

12 **CHAPTER 45**

13 **VETERANS**

14 **SUBCHAPTER I**

15 **GENERAL PROVISIONS**

16 **45.01 Definitions.** In this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires:

- 17 (1) "Active duty" does not include active duty for training purposes.
- 18 (2) "Active duty for training purposes" has the meaning given in 38 USC 101
- 19 (22).
- 20 (3) "Board" means the board of veterans affairs.
- 21 (4) "Child" means any biological child, any adopted child, any stepchild, or any
- 22 other child who is a member of the veteran's household, or any nonmarital child if
- 23 the veteran acknowledges paternity or paternity has been otherwise established.

24 (5) (a) "Dependent" includes any of the following:

Insert from next page

1 1. A spouse, a surviving spouse, or a divorced spouse, but only if the divorced
2 spouse is not remarried and is receiving child support or maintenance from the
3 veteran under a court order.

4 2. Any child under 18 years of age, or under the age of 26 if in full attendance
5 at a recognized school of instruction, or of any age if incapable of self-support by
6 reason of mental or physical disability.

7 3. The biological or adoptive parent or a person ^eto who acts in the place of a
8 parent and who has so acted for not less than 12 months prior to the veteran's
9 entrance into active service.

10 4. A minor sibling or a sibling of any age if incapable of self-support by reason
11 of mental or physical disability.

12 (b) For purposes of defining "dependent" under par. (a), "veteran" includes a
13 person who served on active duty under honorable conditions in the U.S. armed
14 forces or in forces incorporated as part of the U.S. armed forces, who was a resident
15 of this state at the time of entry or reentry into active duty and who died while on
16 active duty if the person's death was not the result of the person's willful misconduct.

***NOTE: From ^{s.}45.348, but only applies to ^{ss.}45.35, ⁴⁵351 and ⁴⁵356--but
s. 45.35 is in the general powers of DVA. Is it necessary?

Move to 40-23

17 (5) "Department" means the department of veterans affairs.

18 (7) "In-kind contributions" includes donations of appliances, buildings,
19 creations, equipment, fixtures, furniture, materials, real property, structures,
20 supplies, and utilities, and work performed in the acquisition of land and
21 construction of property.

22 (8) "Memorial" means a building, structure, statue, or creation used to keep
23 alive the remembrance of a veteran, veterans group, or an event related to a veteran

1 and may include land upon which the building, structure, statue, or creation is
2 located. "Memorial" does not include a museum.

3 (9) "Permanently and totally disabled veteran" means a person who is
4 receiving 100%^{SP} disability compensation from the U.S. department of veterans affairs
5 under 38 USC 301 to 315, 331 to 337, and 350 to 362, due to a permanent and total
6 service-connected disability.

7 (10) "Secretary" means the secretary of the department.

8 (11) "Service in a crises zone" means any of the following:

9 (a) *Service in Lebanon and Grenada.* A person shall be considered to have
10 served in Lebanon or Grenada if the person was on active duty in Lebanon or its
11 territorial waters under honorable conditions between August 1, 1982, and the date
12 of withdrawal of U.S. armed forces from Lebanon, as established by the department
13 by rule, or in Grenada between October 23, 1983, and November 21, 1983, and meets ^{he or she}
14 one of the following conditions: *which is better?*

****NOTE: If the department has established a withdrawal date for Lebanon, we should put the date here. There are a number of these in this subsection.

- 15 1. ~~Was entitled~~ ^{by the person} to receive the armed forces expeditionary medal established by
16 executive order 10977 on December 4, 1961.
- 17 2. ~~Was entitled~~ to receive the marine corps or navy expeditionary medal.
- 18 3. ~~Was not entitled~~ to receive a medal under par. (a) or (b) but submits other
19 proof of service acceptable to the department.

20 (b) *Middle East crisis.* A person shall be considered to have served in a Middle
21 East crisis if, because of active duty in the U.S. armed forces or forces incorporated
22 as a part of U.S. armed forces, any of the following apply:

STET

1 1. The person was awarded the humanitarian service medal for participating
2 in the attempt to rescue American hostages in Iran.

3 2. The person was awarded the valor ribbon bar by the U.S. state department
4 for having been a hostage in Iran during the Iranian hostage crisis in 1980 and 1981.

5 3. The person participated in the April 14, 1986, military action against Libya.

6 4. The person served on the U.S.S. Stark on May 17, 1987.

7 5. The person served in support of Operation Desert Shield or Operation Desert
8 Storm under all of the following conditions:

9 a. Under an active duty order, a unit assignment order or an involuntary
10 extension of an active duty order or in the Middle East or in territorial or
11 international waters adjacent to the Middle East.

12 b. Under honorable conditions.

13 c. Between August 1, 1990, and the ending date of Operation Desert Shield or
14 Operation Desert Storm, as established by the department by rule.

15 6. The person served for 90 days or more in support of Operation Enduring
16 Freedom or an operation that is a successor to Operation Enduring Freedom or
17 served in the Operation Enduring Freedom theater of operation under all of the
18 following conditions:

19 a. Under an active duty order, a unit assignment order, or an involuntary
20 extension of an active duty order.

21 b. Under honorable conditions.

22 c. Between September 11, 2001, and the ending date of Operation Enduring
23 Freedom or an operation that is a successor to Operation Enduring Freedom, as
24 established by the department by rule.